CRYSTAL LAKE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2010
HELD AT THE CRYSTAL LAKE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Haydéh30 p.m. On roll call, members Batastini,
Esposito, Gavle, Greenman, Jouron, Lembke, Sklbzarel Hayden were present. Mr. Goss was
absent.

Mr. Hayden asked those in attendance to rise téhga?ledge of Allegiance. He led those in attenda
in the Pledge.

Michelle Rentzsch, Director of Planning and Econodeévelopment, Elizabeth Maxwell, Planner, and
Rick Paulson, Building Commissioner, were presenfStaff.

Mr. Hayden stated that this meeting is being tskedinow as well as being recorded for future plelyba
on the City’s cable station.

APPROVE MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 1, 2010 PLANNING AND ZONING

COMMISSION MEETING

Mr. Esposito moved to approve the minutes fromSbptember 1, 2010 Planning and Zoning
Commission meeting as presented. Mr. Skluzacednsisd the motion. On roll call, members
Esposito, Gavle, Greenman, Jouron, Lembke, andz8&&k voted aye. Members Batastini and Hayden
abstained. Motion passed.

2010-55 LUKAS - 1764 Andover PUBLIC HEARING
Variation to allow a deck and pool to encroach3’1into the rear yard setback.

Mr. Hayden stated the petitioner is requesting pleistion be continued to the next Planning andiZgn
Commission meeting to allow them time to work witaff.

Mr. Esposito moved to continue 2010-55 Lukas Varrato the October 6, 2010 PZC meeting. Mr.
Batastini seconded the motion. On roll call, aimbers voted aye. Motion passed.

2010-51 CHASE BANK (LUTTER CENTER) — 1186 Route 3+ PUBLIC HEARING
Preliminary & Final PUD for a financial institution

Mr. Hayden stated that the fees have been paidihensign has been posted. He said the surrounding
property owners have been notified and the Ceatdiof Publication is in the file. Mr. Hayden waav
the reading of the legal notice without objection.

Tim Meseck, architect for Chase Bank, and Mike Metavith Chase Bank were present to represent



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 15, 2010
PAGE 2

the petition. Mr. Metzger said this site makesssefor them. It is the perfect location just odesof a 2
mile radius of their other branches. He addedhhaing Wal Mart behind them is a plus.

Mr. Meseck said the building is approximately 4,30@are feet and a single story. This will bela fu
service bank with not only tellers but also persdvasmkers. He described the materials and cotobet
used which are similar to those used in the sudimgnbuildings. Mr. Meseck said you won't be atde
see the mechanicals on the roof of the buildinige tfash enclosure they are proposing will mateh th
building and will have wood slat gates in front.

Mr. Meseck said the signs have been modified aigdtliteir intent to meet the sign ordinance
requirements. They are withdrawing their requessign variations. He added that the pylon sign
originally requested has been replaced with a m@mirsign which will be similar in height and design
of the monument signs for the surrounding property.

Mr. Meseck said they are showing 48 parking spémethis building. They anticipate the need of 48
spaces and are not asking for a parking variation.

Mr. Hayden recapped that the petitioner is requgdareliminary and Final PUD approval without any
variations. Mr. Meseck said that is correct.

Mr. Hayden asked the petitioner if they feel thaydérmet the Findings of Fact listed in the stgbore

Mr. Meseck said yes. Mr. Hayden asked if the jetdr had any concerns regarding the conditions
listed in the staff report. Mr. Meseck said thayé& no problem with the conditions except for #4
regarding architecture. He said the materials Wiéhyoe using are consistent with the surrounding
properties. They don'’t feel they need additiomehdectural elements because this building isasot
massive as others in the immediate area. Mr. Meseéded that they would prefer to use a metal canop
so the signs are easier to move or replace. Tingpgas in the rear of the building and staff is
recommending it be finished off. Mr. Meseck sa@ritit Bank is cast stone with brick but that bungyli
doesn’t have the elements this building has. Hetba entrance has a shingle roof to give it aemor
residential look.

There was no one in the public who wished to speathis petition. The public portion of the heagrin
was closed at this time.

Mr. Jouron thanked the petitioner for substituting pylon sign with a monument sign. He asked &abou
the lighting for the signage. Mr. Meseck explaiteav the sign lighting is designed. Mr. Jourordsai
they did a nice job on the building.

Mr. Batastini also appreciates the eliminationh& variations. He said the PZC has been veryaigor
regarding drive-through canopies. They even toakrisl Bank to task with the poles supporting the
canopy. Mr. Batastini added that it is difficudtdee how the canopy will look with the photos thaty
were given. Mr. Meseck said they will be paintthg columns. Mr. Batastini said the City made idarr



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 15, 2010
PAGE 3

Bank wrap them up. Ms. Rentzsch said that is corr®ir. Batastini said he would like to see the
canopy be dressed up. Mr. Meseck said they caelssdup the columns with a cast stone base ugto th
canopy. Mr. Batastini said he is looking for theability three or more years down the road. Mr.
Metzger said the closest similar building is ind®ale. Mr. Meseck said the canopy does hold up ove
time. Mr. Batastini asked about the comment tessc¢he windows. Mr. Meseck said they don't feel i
IS necessary.

Mr. Gavle asked if the petitioner were agreeables® masonry on the drive-through. Mr. Meseck said
they are agreeing to add masonry to the columns/buld like to have the canopy remain pre-finished
metal to match the building.

Mr. Greenman thanked the petitioner for takingagbmments made by the Commissioners at the
previous meeting and making the changes to the ptemnappreciates what has been done with this
building and since this is the entrance to the @itgt the building will be seen from all four sides
because of its location, he is looking for mor¢hi@ architecture and materials. He added thaighis
also a Final request which means this is the odepaty time they will be able to see this plan.eyh
have been very consistent regarding the use df.bric

Mr. Esposito and Mr. Skluzacek agreed with the cemtisithat have been made.

Mr. Meseck showed samples of the materials andsaétobe used in the building. Ms. Maxwell said
Staff is looking for the colors to match the exigtbuildings.

Mr. Batastini said he would prefer to have masanryhe top of the canopy. Ms. Maxwell said that th
City has requested a more integrated canopy eleomeptevious drive-through canopies in this area.
Mr. Batastini said Harris Bank has stone caps atwmbks much better. He would like more
architectural interest.

Mr. Esposito feels that the building doesn’t lo@dkand feels that wrapping the poles will be enough
Mr. Hayden doesn’t want this building to look lik¢alMart since WalMart isn’t that close.

Mr. Batastini moved to approve a Preliminary angalFPlanned Unit Development to allow the
construction of a financial institution for Chasari& at 1185 South Route 31 (Lutter Center) with the
following conditions:

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisorgfobrecommendations, as approved by the City
Council:

A. Application (Tim Meseck, The Architects Partrteps received 08/18/10)

B. Alta Survey (Gewalt Hamilton, dated 08/09/1@&ei@ed 08/10/10)

C. Engineering plans (Gewalt Hamilton, dated 08/09feceived 08/10/10)

D. Elevations (The Architects Partnership, datef294.0 received 08/10/10)

E. Photometric Plan (The Architects Partnershipedi@6/29/10 received 08/10/10)



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 15, 2010
PAGE 4

F. Landscape Plan (The Architects Partnershipdda8#06/10 received 08/10/10)
G. Floor Plan (The Architects Partnership, date@@@.0 received 08/10/10)
H. Site Plan (The Architects Partnership, date@@@.0 received 08/10/10)

3. Site Plan

A. The site plan shall be amended per Wal-Martigeidvay requirement and Engineering’s
comments. This shall shift the driveway furtheutboaway from the right-in/right-out access
from Route 31 and increase the opening radius.

4. Architecture
A. Material samples shall be presented to the Pgnand Zoning Commission and City Council
and-shallresemble-the-current-Widrt-colors-and-materials
B. The window bays shall be recessed into the &tav#o provide additional relief and interest
to the elevation. If they cannot be recessed tdrgaders and sills shall be incorporated around
the window and door openings to provide the archiral details.
C. An additional top element shall be added tadiie-through canopy to finish off the canopy
and provide integration with the building elevason

FE. The four supporting columns for the drive-throuch canopy shall be wrapped with block
around the base and brick veneer up to the underselof the canopy.

6. The petitioner shall address all of the reviemments and requirements of the Engineering and
Building, Fire Rescue, Police, Public Works, andnhing and Economic Development
Departments.

Mr. Jouron seconded the motion. On roll call nadimbers voted aye. Motion passed.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 15, 2010
PAGE 5

Mr. Hayden said the petitioner went a long way teibthe suggestions of the Commission.

2010-53 DOLPHIN SWIM CLUB — 825 Munshaw— PUBLIC HEARING
Variation from the requirement to screen the rgofteechanical units.

Mr. Hayden stated that the fees have been paidihensign has been posted. He said the surrounding
property owners have been notified and the Ceatdiof Publication is in the file. Mr. Hayden waa
the reading of the legal notice without objection.

Tony Sarillo was present to represent the petitigin. Sarillo said the original developer went bank
and almost took other businesses with them. Tisesaly one remaining issue with the building which
is the screening of the mechanicals. He said Bsigaported system would be extremely expensive to
install and it doesn’t make sense to install addygx to screen a large box. Mr. Sarillo saidrto
system is a rubber roof.

Mr. Hayden asked about the findings of fact listethe staff report. Mr. Sarillo said they do méed
requirements. Mr. Hayden asked if the hardshthesroof. Mr. Sarillo said yes and the size of the
screening that would be needed. He reviewed e@ehian separately.

Mr. Paulson said the mechanicals were placed orothfeby the original owner without a permit. He
said the wind load that would be created by a scfeethis unit would be extremely large and would
void any warranty they would have for the rubbefroHe added that this is the largest roof top
mechanical unit in the City of Crystal Lake.

Mr. Batastini asked if there were any options. Bhirillo said they could paint the unit or covewith a
vinyl covering. That would have the effect as eesning wall.

There was no one in the public who wished to seathis petition. The public portion of the heagrin
was closed at this time.

Mr. Batastini said Mr. Paulson’s comments are \regipful.

Mr. Greenman asked if the only reason we havedteesing is for aesthetics. Ms. Rentzsch said yes.
Mr. Greenman said if they can find a happy medienwbuld support that. He asked if staff would be
comfortable with having a condition added thatgké&tioner should work with staff on a practical
solution. The Commissioners agreed. Mr. Greensaghthey are not really approving a variation but
they need to come up with a different than normegening. He feels it is important to make the
distinction. Ms. Rentzsch said this is a parteiiation or an exception to the UDO but no a total
variation.

Mr. Batastini asked if the size of this unit istdied by the swimming pool use. Mr. Paulson sae#l y



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
SEPTEMBER 15, 2010
PAGE 6

Mr. Batastini moved to approve a partial Variatioom the requirement to screen rooftop units from
view on three (3) sides not to be screened andim@red but only the screen/cover the side facing
Rakow Road for Dolphin Swim Club at 825 Munshawhwiie following conditions:

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisorgfobrecommendations, as approved by the City
Council:

A. Application (Sarillo, received 8/20/10)

B. Plat of Survey (Baseline, dated 7/18/09, rea®R20/10)

2. A partial variation is hereby granted to allow Dolphin Sw@tub to not fully screen the existing
rooftop appurtenances from view. Work with stafprovide screening only along Rakow Road
view,_i.e. vinyl, painting, etc

3. Any additional rooftop appurtenances that adeddeither by this tenant or other future tenahts
this location, will be required to be screenedtherprovisions of the UDO.

4. The petitioner shall address any comments audreaments from the Engineering and Building,
Fire Rescue, Police, Public Works, and PlanningiEacmhomic Development Departments.

Mr. Greenman seconded the motion. On roll cdlim@mbers voted aye. Motion passed.
REPORT FROM PLANNING

- 2010-21 Topps — 8307 Ridgefield Rd.
- 2010-54 M’Lady Development Agreement — 5656 Naeht Hwy.

Ms. Rentzsch reviewed the items that are schedatetie next PZC meeting.

COMMENTS FROM THE COMMISSION

Mr. Esposito asked about Pep Boys. Ms. Rentzadhisare is a provision in the lease of that shogpi
center that the other businesses must approvetamepair business. She said things are moving
forward and they are in for permit.

Mr. Hayden asked about the Goodwill store. Ms.tR&sh said they are moving forward with looking at
other locations. The site they were looking at vediser pricy for their budget.

Mr. Batastini asked about the former Oak Industsiés on the north side of Crystal Lake Ave. Ms.
Rentzsch said they are following the IEPA mitigatman and explained what was being done.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:30 p.m.



